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Ch7: Transport (PHC) 19.02.15 

  [10.32 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Good morning, just in the event that there are lay submitters 

here today who have not attended previously, the purpose of these 

prehearing meetings is to finalise a hearing date and make 5 

consequential rulings regarding the filing of evidence and other matters 

and setting timelines for those.   

 

 So you will all get an opportunity to address us.  We will first of all 

hear from the Council as to the scope.  I can indicate that the date for 10 

this hearing will be subject - this is indicative - 23 June.  We will be 

sitting on that date as two Panels, one for subdivision and one for 

transport.   So anything on scope, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Good morning, sir.  The scope is reasonably straightforward.  In 15 

this instance chapter 7, which is the transport chapter, the definitions 

that are used in that chapter also fall within the scope and we will 

provide a list of those along with the statement of issues, which I 

suspect we will be preparing. 

 20 

 Just in terms of the central city, just to be clear, the central city 

transport provisions do not form part of this part of the scope.  They are 

within the accessible city, which you have heard evidence on, within 

the strategic directions hearing they are outside and in phase 2 there 

will also be a transport zone that is also outside the scope of this 25 

hearing. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, and given the date is well in advance, if we give you three 

weeks, given your other commitments, for a statement of issues and a 

list of definitions? 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, that is fine. 

 

SJH:   So, say, 13 March? 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   13 March, that is fine, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   I have a list of key issues if you would like me to take you 40 

through them now? 

 

SJH:   Yes, that would be good, it would be helpful if you indicate that to us. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay.  So the Council has identified a number of key issues, 45 

sub-issues sit within them.  So this is not an absolutely exclusive list 
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but the first key issue is the objectives and policies and more 

specifically the extent of topics covered by the objectives and policies.   

 

 Some examples are whether provisions for reverse sensitivity are 

appropriate;  detail regarding Ngāi Tahu values;  strategic transport 5 

links, they are issues to do with the Port Company, the Airport, 

KiwiRail and to an extent Waterloo Park.   

 

  [10.35 am] 

 10 

 Issue No 2 is car parking, and sub-issues within there are whether to 

have minimum, maximum or no car parking standards;  requirements 

for parking and access for people with disabilities;  requirements to seal 

car parking and changes that are sought to assessment matters. 

 15 

 Issue No 3 is cycle parking.  Sub-issues are requirements for such 

parking are design and changes to assessment matters.   

 

 Issue No 4, manoeuvring and access design.  There are a relatively 

small number of submitters on that issue.   20 

 

 Issue No 5 is the requirement for integrated transport systems, and that 

sits within rule 10, which is the high trip generator rule.  Sir, that is 

probably going to be the issue we suspect will take up most of the 

hearing time.  Sitting within that in there is the integrated transport 25 

assessment thresholds;  the issue of exemptions;  assessment matters 

and then matters of drafting to that rule. 

 

 No 6, the place and function of roads, and this relates to appendix 12, 

which is the road classification.  An example of concerns that have 30 

been raised there are the recognition of the role that roads have in 

communities in terms of dividing and/or connecting those 

communities. 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, one or two people at the back are having a difficulty, if you 35 

would just raise your voice a little, Ms Scott, please. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry.  And, finally, No 7, there are some site specific issues that 

have been raised and one of two of those there is the quarry, the quarry 

operators and the Lyttelton Port.  That is all, sir. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  I think just as we run through and record appearances we 

will deal with scope and also witnesses so could you just indicate the 

number of expert – well, number of witnesses generally.  You do not 

need to give us the names at this stage. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   We have five on our list, sir, possibly four we hope.  And that is 

Mr David Falconer, who is the chapter lead, and then we have three 

traffic engineers but they focus on different issues within the chapter.  

And possibly a transport economic economist depending on discussions 

that are ongoing with various submitters. 5 

 

SJH:   And Mr Falconer will be dealing with the 32A matters? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   Taking into account our difficulties to date? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   The Crown? 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Scope first? 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Scope first.  The scope as outlined by my friend is 

accepted, sir.  The only minor thing I would add, because I was not 

clear if it was covered, sir, is loading areas.  That is also a topic that is 

raised in submissions, sir. 

 25 

 Sir, in terms of witnesses, the first thing I would like to outline, sir, is 

that I will be outlining the witnesses for the Crown entities except for 

NZTA.  I have got a learned friend here that is representing NZTA 

separately due to the importance of this chapter to them. 

 30 

 So for the other Crown agencies, sir, for the Canterbury Earthquake 

Recovery Authority, three witnesses.  They will be a planner, a traffic 

engineer and a witness covering integration with the recovery plan for 

the central city, sir. 

 35 

 For Housing New Zealand a planner. 

 

 For Corrections possibly a planner but we are hoping to consolidate 

with that one, sir. 

 40 

 For the Ministry of Education also a planner, the same thing there. 

 

 And for the New Zealand Fire Service, Mr Alan Merry, operational 

matters and Ms Ainsley McLeod, a planner as well, sir, and that is all. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Walsh? 
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MS WALSH:   Yes, sir, for Progressive Enterprises Limited, they will possibly 

be calling a traffic expert as well as a planner.  

 

 For Ngāi Tahu Property Limited, they are not intending to call any 5 

witnesses at this stage but would still like to remain involved possibly 

at most by way just of legal submissions. 

 

  [10.40 am] 

 10 

 Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, they will be calling a planner, but that will 

just be in relation to the issue that Ms Scott identified.  Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Mehlhopt, you position remains the same on this? 

 15 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, it does, sir, and no issues as to scope either. 

 

SJH:   I take it if the Panel, after mediation and conferencing, feels the 

Regional Council could assist, you would be happy to call a witness to 

assist in that fashion? 20 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, I would certainly seek instructions on that, sir, and 

take anything aboard, yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, I am sorry, I have forgotten your name. 25 

 

MR EDWARDS:   That is okay, sir, Ray Edwards. 

 

SJH:   Yes, Mr Edwards? 

 30 

MR EDWARDS:   I am here representing 1188 and 1189 Papanui Properties, 

1073 St George’s, and also myself, I will get you my submission 

number in just a second.  I will forward that to you shortly.  No issues 

with scope and it will only be me presenting submissions.  

 35 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Welde, is it? 

 

MS WEDDE:   Thank you, sir, Ms Wedde for the Transport Agency. 

 

SJH:   Wedde, thank you.   40 

 

MS WEDDE:   We accept the outline of scope as outlined by my friend, 

Ms Scott, and in terms of witnesses, the Transport Agency is intending 

to call three witnesses, Mr Richards in terms of operational matters;  

Ms McLeod for planning; and Mr Ian Clark for traffic engineering.   45 
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SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MS WEDDE:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   If we go immediately behind.  5 

 

MR PHILLIPS:   Mr Phillips, appearing for Scentre New Zealand Limited.  No 

issues with scope.  They will be calling a planner and a traffic engineer.  

I am also appearing here for Goodman Property Trust in Mr Cleary’s 

absence, and they have indicated they will be calling a traffic engineer.   10 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Semple? 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Thank you, sir.  I appear for Mariner Investments, Mariner 

Number One Investments, Maurice R Carter, Maurice R Carter 15 

Charitable Trust and Oakvale.  They will call planning and traffic 

evidence, that will be shared evidence.  

 

SJH:   Thank you, we are grateful. 

 20 

MS SEMPLE:   Thank you.  I also appear for Trustees Executive Limited and 

AMP, they will also call planning and traffic evidence, and that may 

well also be shared, we are working on that.  And MPT, which will also 

call planning and traffic evidence, probably not the same planning 

evidence, it might be the same traffic evidence. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Thank you. 

 30 

SJH:   Mr Millar. 

 

MR MILLER:   Nothing from me, sir, Ms ONeil will speak. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MS ONEIL:   Sir, Ms ONeil, I am representing Orion New Zealand Limited, 

University of Canterbury and Christchurch Polytech Institute of 

Technology.  We are going to call a planner for all three of those 

submitters and a traffic engineer for the University and the Polytech.  40 

Have got no scope issue. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Roberts? 
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MS ROBERTS:   Good morning, sir.  For Foodstuffs South Island and 

Foodstuff South Island Properties, we will possibly calling a planner 

and a traffic engineer, and we have no issues to scope. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Eveleigh? 5 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Thank you, sir.  For Orchard Trust and Memorial Avenue 

Investments, we will be calling a traffic engineer and potentially a 

planner, that will be shared witnesses.  And for Kennaway Park, a 

traffic engineer and potentially a planner – I am not sure yet whether 10 

that would be a shared witness. 

 

SJH:   You have the potential to share the witnesses? 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Potentially, sir, yes. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Thank you.  No issues as to scope. 

 20 

MR JOLL:   Tim Joll, sir, representing Bunnings, Environ Projects Limited and 

Money Developments Limited, Alpine Presbyterian, Methodist Church 

of New Zealand, Rangi Ruru Girls School, Selwyn House School and 

the Catholic Dioceses.  We will be calling a planning and traffic 

engineer and we will be looking to share evidence for all those parties. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you very much.   

 

MR WEAVER:   Sir, Mark Weaver, on behalf of Calder Stewart Industries 

Limited, we have just got a couple of fairly minor discrete issues we 30 

hope to resolve with counsel, but if not, then it will just be myself 

appearing.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

MS COMFORT:   Julie Comfort for (INDISTINCT 4.18) Smith and the New 

Zealand Institute of Surveyors, again we also, like Mr Weaver, have 

some minor issues we hope we may be able to resolve before the 

hearing, but otherwise it will just be a planner or a surveyor. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR MORA:   Good morning, sir, Mike Mora from the Riccarton-Wigram 

Community Board.  I do not believe we’ll be calling an expert, I will 

just be presenting myself if necessary.  Thank you. 45 
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SJH:   Thank you, Mr Mora. 

 

MR ENGLISH:   Good morning, Richard English, representing the Ilam and 

Upper Riccarton Residents Association, our numbers are 738 and 

further submitter 1427.  Unfortunately I did not hear all the scope, so 5 

excuse me if they have already been covered, but we will be submitting 

on parking issues relating to houses less than 150 square metres in size, 

tertiary student accommodation, parking reduction factor, and high trip 

generation rules. 

 10 

  [10.45 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR ENGLISH:   We will not be calling any expert witnesses. 15 

 

SJH:   You will not be? 

 

MR ENGLISH:   Will not be calling expert witnesses. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS MURRAY:   Jane Murray for Canterbury District Health Board, 648.  We 

will be submitting on the promotion of public transport and active 

transport on integrated transport systems, parking for healthcare 25 

facilities, and high trip generating activities.  We will be calling a 

public health physician and a planner.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 30 

MR ENSOR:   Thank you, sir, Tim Ensor for Canterbury Aggregate Producers 

Group.  We will be calling a planner and possibly a transport expert. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

MS DUMONT:   Hello, sir, I am Terra Dumont, representing Generation Zero 

and we hope to call a transport engineer and a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 40 

MS DUMONT:   We have no problem with the scope. 

 

MS BEGG:   Good morning, I am Janet Begg, my submitter’s number is 280.  

Can I ask, could I please have a friend to come with me to hold my 

hand, because I would really like to speak to the thing that the Council 45 

have just mentioned, the Integrated Transport Authority. 
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SJH:   You can bring who you like. 

 

MS BEGG:   Thank you, sir.  

 5 

SJH:   Has that covered everybody at the back?  All right, thank you.  

 

 Well, the scope is obviously as defined by Ms Scott with, I think, your 

concern about loading zone is another one, I think Mr English and the 

Health Board indicated a somewhat different slant, a couple of those do 10 

not naturally fit under the ones that you have mentioned, but they will 

also clearly be part of the scope.  There is nothing procedural arises out 

of that.  

 

 Just for the benefit of yourself and Generation Zero, there is a Friend of 15 

the Submitter here who can assist you in relation to what you file, the 

form of it, how the hearings take place, submissions and that, but I 

suspect Generation Zero in particular are fairly experienced at 

delivering evidence now because you do it quite regularly around the 

country. 20 

 

 The time limits and such like we have already indicated because of the 

pressures.  This will be the same as we delivered yesterday on 

commercial and industrial.  We need to stress that all evidence is read 

in advance by the Panel.  Parties calling evidence, the witnesses will 25 

have 10 minutes to deliver to us a highlights package of that evidence, 

submitters will have 10 minutes to speak to their submission, and in 

cross-examination there will be 10 minutes for cross-examination, 

however I stress that any party has the ability to apply to the Panel for 

leave for a longer timespan than that if they consider it necessary. 30 

 

 In relation to the filing of evidence, it is quite clear that there will be 

consolidation of cases for a number of parties and we are grateful to 

those who have done that, others who have not thought about it yet, if 

they think about sharing witnesses.  35 

 

 So if we start 23 June, we go back four weeks again, Ms Scott, from 

there, which - - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I think that takes us to 26 May. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, so the Council’s evidence by 26 May, 10 days for submitters 

to respond, so 10 June.  Evidence in rebuttal of the Council and any 

relevant rebuttal evidence from other submitters 17 June.  Leave to 

apply to cross-examine or for extensions of time for submission, 45 

evidence or cross-examination by 17 June.  
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 I do not think there are any issues with specification of relief, it is clear 

enough, the issues in this particular chapter. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is correct, sir. 5 

 

  [10.50 am] 

 

SJH:   Does everybody accept that? 

 10 

 All right, thank you. 

 

 I take it would be considered useful if the traffic experts and the 

economist, witnesses like that, are expertly conferenced, that can 

happen before the filing of evidence presumably? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, that would seem sensible, particularly with the amount 

of time that we have available for this hearing. 

 

SJH:   Yes.  Well, again I think if you would liaise with the Secretariat to draw 20 

up a draft conferencing programme for those experts – are there other 

experts that should be included? 

 

MS SCOTT:   I think that they are really the two focused areas in this respect.  

And the Council would – could see some value in that happening in 25 

April, so we will work with the Secretariat to assist in organising that. 

 

SJH:   All right, I am grateful for that.  So the Council to liaise with the 

Secretariat with a view to producing a draft timetable for expert 

conferencing in the areas of economics and traffic/transport, with such 30 

conferencing to take place in April.  The draft timetable to be circulated 

to all submitters for approval and acceptance before it is finalised. 

Mediation with clients and with experts assisting, with clients, that is, 

that combined, if it is an organisation, so whoever attends mediation 

must be able to make a binding decision, that should commence 35 

following the filing of the Council’s evidence on 26 May. 

 

 Again, if you would be good enough, Ms Scott, to liaise with the 

Secretariat, firstly to break it into the issues chunks we talked about 

earlier, the scope chunks, and secondly to put together a draft timetable 40 

that can commence immediately after the filing of your evidence, in the 

same manner as I indicated for the expert conferencing. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, we can certainly do that, and perhaps, it would be 

useful to add I think in respect of the caucusing, there are some obvious 45 

sub-topics, so that would most usefully be quite perfect. 
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SJH:   That can be part of that process as well. That is not to say that there 

should not be informal approaches and mediation and discussions that 

can take place beforehand, there is already a couple of submitters have 

indicated they are in discussions with the Council.  I urge all of you to 5 

go through that process, it does not need to wait till the formal 

mediation to take place. 

 

SJH:   Redline version? 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I think - - -  

 

SJH:   Date? Should that be before the expert conferencing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   I am not sure if that will be feasible, sir.  I think the Council 15 

would prefer to meet – for their experts to meet and actually discuss the 

issues. 

 

SJH:   All right. 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   And then in - - -  

 

SJH:   Well, then a redline version - - -  

 

MS SCOTT:   Perhaps the week before the - - -  25 

 

SJH:   - - - a tracked version, seven days after the finalise – after the conference 

coordinator or whatever – it is a chairman - delivers the report. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   Is that sufficient time? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, yes it is, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you.  Anything else? 

 

SJH:   We covered off definitions earlier I think didn’t we, Ms Scott?  Yes. 

 

 Is there anything anybody else wishes to raise? 40 

 

 Yes? 

 

MS MURRAY:   I am sorry, what was the date of the track changes? 

 45 
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SJH:   Seven days after the report on the expert conferencing is made available 

to the Panel and on the website. 

 

 Yes? 

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, yes, if the Panel could just clarify the situation with 

opening and closing submissions once again? 

 

SJH:   Sorry, it is now almost standard like the other procedures, I am grateful 

you have reminded me – brief legal openings, they do not have to be 10 

filed in advance, although it is helpful.  We will accept them handed in 

at the hearing and once we get towards the end of the evidence we will 

timetable the closing legal submissions which as we have said earlier is 

where we expect the substantive legal submissions to come from. 

 15 

 Anything else? 

 

 Thank you for that. 

 

 Yes, Mr Mora? 20 

 

MR MORA:   Just a question, sir, will light rail be considered in the scope? 

 

SJH:   Well is it in the chapter? 

 25 

  [10.55 am] 

 

MR MORA:   I am not sure, sir. 

 

  [10.55 am] 30 

 

SJH:   Well I do not think it is from my reading of it so it would not be within 

scope, but if your Board wishes to make a submission around that we 

will certainly hear you in any event, Mr Mora. 

 35 

MR MORA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH: Anyone with anything else?  The gentleman at the back, are you, have 

you got a question or anything?   Okay, thank you we will adjourn. 

 40 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 10.55 AM ACCORDINGLY 


